

M. Pearson

CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY

To: The Chair and Members of the Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

(see below)

SERVICE HEADQUARTERS

THE KNOWLE

CLYST ST GEORGE

EXETER DEVON EX3 0NW

 Your ref :
 Date : 10 February 2022
 Telephone : 01392 872200

 Our ref : DSFRA/MP/SY
 Please ask for : Steve Yates
 Fax : 01392 872300

Website: www.dsfire.gov.uk Email: syates@dsfire.gov.uk Direct Telephone: 01392 872329

DEVON & SOMERSET FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY

(Budget Meeting)

Friday, 18 February, 2022

A meeting of the Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority will be held on the above date, **commencing at 10.00 am in the Conference Rooms, Service Headquarters** to consider the following matters.

M. Pearson Clerk to the Authority

SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA No. 3

PLEASE REFER TO THE NOTES AT THE END OF THE AGENDA LISTING SHEETS

PART 1 - OPEN COMMITTEE

7 d Community Safety Committee (Pages 1 - 4)

The Chair of the Committee, Councillor Chesterton, to **MOVE** the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2022 (attached).

RECOMMENDATIONS

 that any recommendation in relation to the Community Risk Management Plan 2022-23 to 2026-27 be considered in conjunction with agenda item 8 below; and

www.dsfire.gov.uk Acting to Protect & Save

(ii). that, subject to (i) above, the Minutes be adopted in accordance with Standing Orders.

15 <u>Exclusion of the Press and Public</u>

RECOMMENDATION that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to the Act, namely information relating to the financial and business affairs of any particular person – including the authority holding that information.

<u>PART 2 - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC</u>

16 Resources Committee (Budget Meeting) 8 February 2022 Restricted Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)

The Chair of the Committee, Councillor Peart, to **MOVE** the Restricted Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2022 (attached).

RECOMMENDATION that the Restricted Minutes be adopted in accordance with Standing Orders.

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

Membership:

Councillors Randall Johnson (Chair), Best, Biederman, Bown, Brazil, Dr. Buchan, Chesterton, Clayton, Coles, Corvid, Drean, Hannaford, Healey MBE, Long, McGeough, Napper, Parker-Khan, Peart, Prowse, Radford, Redman, Roome, Scott, Shayer and Thomas (Vice-Chair)

NOTES

1. Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this agenda should contact the person listed in the "Please ask for" section at the top of this agenda.

2. Reporting of Meetings

Any person attending a meeting may report (film, photograph or make an audio recording) on any part of the meeting which is open to the public – unless there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chair - and use any communication method, including the internet and social media (Facebook, Twitter etc.), to publish, post or otherwise share the report. The Authority accepts no liability for the content or accuracy of any such report, which should not be construed as representing the official, Authority record of the meeting. Similarly, any views expressed in such reports should not be interpreted as representing the views of the Authority.

Flash photography is not permitted and any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

3. Declarations of Interests at meetings (Authority Members only)

If you are present at a meeting and you are aware that you have either a disclosable pecuniary interest, personal interest or non-registerable interest in any matter being considered or to be considered at the meeting then, unless you have a current and relevant dispensation in relation to the matter, you must:

- (i) disclose at that meeting, by no later than commencement of consideration of the item in which you have the interest or, if later, the time at which the interest becomes apparent to you, the existence of and for anything other than a "sensitive" interest the nature of that interest; and then
- (ii) withdraw from the room or chamber during consideration of the item in which you have the relevant interest.

If the interest is sensitive (as agreed with the Monitoring Officer), you need not disclose the nature of the interest but merely that you have an interest of a sensitive nature. You must still follow (i) and (ii) above.

Where a dispensation has been granted to you either by the Authority or its Monitoring Officer in relation to any relevant interest, then you must act in accordance with any terms and conditions associated with that dispensation.

Where you declare at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary or personal interest that you have not previously included in your Register of Interests then you must, within 28 days of the date of the meeting at which the declaration was made, ensure that your Register is updated to include details of the interest so declared.

NOTES (Continued)

4. Part 2 Reports

Members are reminded that any Part 2 reports as circulated with the agenda for this meeting contain exempt information and should therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s). Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to return them to the Committee Secretary at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

5. Substitute Members (Committee Meetings only)

Members are reminded that, in accordance with Standing Orders, the Clerk (or his representative) must be advised of any substitution prior to the start of the meeting. Members are also reminded that substitutions are not permitted for full Authority meetings.

6. Other Attendance at Committees)

Any Authority Member wishing to attend, in accordance with Standing Orders, a meeting of a Committee of which they are not a Member should contact the Democratic Services Officer (see "please ask for" on the front page of this agenda) in advance of the meeting.

Agenda Item 7d

COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE

(Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority)

9 February 2022

Present:

Councillors Chesterton (Chair), McGeough, Radford (Vice-Chair), Redman, Coles and Randall Johnson (vice Parker-Khan)

Apologies:

Councillor Corvid

* CSC/21/10 Minutes

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2021 be signed as a correct record.

CSC/21/11 Draft Community Risk Management Plan

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Service Improvement (CSC/22/1) recommending to the Fire & Rescue Authority the approval of the draft Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) for 2022 to 2027 following incorporation of feedback received during the public consultation exercise which closed on 14 January 2022.

The Director of Service Improvement advised the Committee that the public consultation had been extensive, with 250 individual responses received in addition to the 1700 responses to the pre-consultation exercise undertaken in 2021, the result of which had been fed into the draft CRMP prior to the public consultation exercise. He added that the CRMP was an iterative document and that an annual review would be undertaken to ensure that the Service could address any emerging risks in future years.

Reference was made to a change in appliance type at certain stations and an explanation was requested of the Service's reasoning behind this. The Director of Service Delivery advised that the Service had undertaken a review of its vehicles and their location under its Fleet Replacement Plan to ensure that it had matched its resources to risk appropriately which accorded with its Community Risk Management Plan. This process had been undertaken with staff and stakeholder engagement and an explanation had been given to each station as to why each vehicle was being placed in its location. The Committee requested that all Members of the Authority be kept apprised of such matters or any other contentious information in future to assist them in responding to queries from the public. The Chief Fire Officer responded that more clarity may be needed in terms of the type and means of providing this information whereupon it was suggested that this matter be discussed at a future Members' Forum.

The Committee also referred to the Emergency Response Standards for fires and Road Traffic Collisions (RTCs) and asked if the target set was realistic for urban areas bearing in mind the delays that could occur at key, busy times in the day. The Director of Service Delivery confirmed that the target had been set following extensive research into the survivability of a person some years back and was:

- 10 minute response for primary fires (75%); and
- 15 minutes for RTCs.

It was acknowledged that the impact of changes in fire safety such as the increased use of smoke alarms, more modern appliances, less chip pan fires and so on may have impacted on the survivability of a person in recent years. There may be a piece of work that could be undertaken in the future to look into this.

RESOLVED that the Authority be recommended to approve the draft Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) for 2022 to 2027 as set out at Appendix A of report CSC/22/1.

* CSC/21/12 Strategic Priority 1 and 2 Performance Measures: Quarter 2 2021

The Committee received for information a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/22/2) that set out the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) against which the Service's performance in relation to the Strategic Objectives for Quarter 3 of 2021-22 was measured.

The performance status of the Service KPIs is based on the following criteria:

- Succeeding -
- The KPI is achieving its target.
- Near target
- The KPI is less than 10% away from achieving its target.
- Needs improvement The KPI is at least 10% away from achieving its target.

The Committee noted that performance to quarter 2 of 2021-22 was as follows:

	Succeeding	Near target	Needs improvement
Priority 1	8	10	1
Priority 2	8	4	0

There was one KPI requiring improvement – KPI 1.1.4.1 on the number of Home Fire Safety Visits completed. This area was the subject of a full review with an exception report was included within report CSC/22/1. A full report on Home Safety Visits was also included elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.

The Committee expressed its thanks for the quality of report and performance presented.

NB. Minute CSC/21/14 below also refers.

* CSC/21/13 Fire Engine Availability

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/22/3) that set out details of fire engine availability within Devon and Somerset based on statistics over a five-year period from December 2016 to November 2021 for:

- Standard pump availability;
- Risk prioritised availability; and
- Risk dependent availability.

Availability had been recognised as a risk in the previous iteration of the CRMP, the Integrated Risk Management Plan. Whilst there had been a decline in the availability of risk dependent pumps (December 2017 to December 2020) as a result of a decline in the numbers of retained duty system staff which had impacted on Emergency Response Standards (ERS), the efforts made by the Service with the advent of Pay for Availability to improve the On Call system had started to result in signs of improvement. It was early in the development of this system, however, thus it was recommended that a review of the position was undertaken in 12 months' time to gauge any further improvement.

The Committee expressed its thanks for the excellent work undertaken on the Pay for Availability system.

Councillor Redman **MOVED** (seconded by Councillor McGeough) an amendment to recommendation (b). in report CSC/22/3 to add:

"that a follow up paper be provided in 6 months as well as 12 months' time".

Upon a vote, this amendment was **CARRIED** unanimously.

RESOLVED that the Committee:

- (a). noted the contents of this paper as suitable evidence to support scrutiny of strategic objective 2a as agreed by the Authority namely:
 - Provide response resources at times and in locations relevant to identified risks of fires and other emergencies
- (b). received a follow-up paper in 6 and 12 months' time and included this item on the Committee's forward agenda.

NB. Minute CSC/21/12 above and CSC/21/15 below also refer.

* CSC/21/14 Home Fire Safety Visits

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/22/4) that set out the background to the instigation of Home Fire Safety Visits (HFSV) and the Service's approach to targeting the most at risk groups of people in the community for such a visit.

The report covered, amongst other matters:

- The impact of prevention activity and the Home Fire Safety Check;
- The Home Fire Safety Visit process in Devon and Somerset;

- The targeting of at risk groups;
- The Service's capacity to deliver Home Fire Safety Visits;
- The risk factors employed in targeting the most vulnerable in the community;
- The Service's Community Safety Strategy 2018-22; and
- The National Fire Chiefs' Council (NFCC) person centric framework.

The Director of Service Delivery reported that the Service's target for HFSV was 18,000 per year. Capacity was based on having 25 full time equivalent technician's posts to deliver specialist home fire safety visits to the most vulnerable people likely to die in a fire. The technicians were able to deliver between 1000 to 1200 visits a month usually. This had been impacted recently by issues such as the Covid-19 pandemic and people being unwilling to let the technicians into their homes to undertake the visits, thus the target was not being met. The Director of Service Delivery added that the Community Safety Strategy was being reviewed currently and integrated with the NFCC's person centric framework. A new online tool was also being developed which would enable those at lower risk from a fire to gain access to information to enable the Service to focus on those at higher risk. The emphasis was being placed on the quality assurance of visits undertaken.

The Chief Fire Officer referred to work being undertaken by the Service's data analysts and advised that a predictor tool was being worked on which could be brought to a future meeting of this Committee for information.

RESOLVED that the report and contents therein be noted as suitable evidence to support scrutiny of strategic objective 1a as agreed b the Fire and Rescue Authority namely:

 deliver interventions and education events to reduce the risk of fire in the community.

NB. Minute CSC/21/12 above also refers.

* CSC/21/15 Forward Plan 2022-23

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Service Delivery (CSC/22/5) that set out a proposed Forward Plan for the Committee in order to provide appropriate scrutiny against the Authority's Strategic Priorities 1 and 2.

RESOLVED that subject to the inclusion of the following, additional items, the Forward Plan for 2022-23 as set out in report CSC/22/5 be approved:

- Review of fatal fire deaths July 2022; and
- Interim report on fire engine availability July 2022.

*DENOTES DELEGATED MATTER WITH POWER TO ACT

Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

